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You can get all Portsmouth City Council information in large print or
on tape by calling 023 9283 4334

For translated information please call:
Bengali answerphone service: 023 9284 1651 or
Cantonese answerphone service: 023 9284 1652
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The Ordnance Survey mapping included within this publication is provided by the
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public function as a planning authority. Persons viewing this mapping should
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Survey map data for their own use. Licence No LA-100019671
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1. INTRODUCTION

These guidelines cover the smallest of
the 22 conservation areas in
Portsmouth, comprising St. Andrew’s
Church on Henderson Road in Eastney.
It is one of a series covering
conservation areas in Portsmouth and
providing guidance on each area, and
is intended to provide supplementary
planning guidance to the Portsmouth
City Local Plan 2001-2011, adopted: 21
July 2006.

Since the Civic Amenities Act 1967,
local planning authorities have been
required to decide which parts of their
area “are of special architectural or
historic interest, the character or
appearance of which it is desirable to
preserve or enhance” and to designate
them as conservation areas.

Postcard from 1909
(Reproduced with kind permission from
Royal Marines Museum, Southsea)

The principal objective of planning in
conservation areas is to oversee a
careful balance between preservation
and improvement of the existing historic
environment, and promotion of
sympathetic new development.

The designation of St. Andrew’s Church
as a conservation area has a number of
direct legal consequences, including
specific procedures for planning
applications, the control of significant
demolition work to the building itself

and works to trees. These areas are
covered in more detail later in this
document.

The conservation area’s boundaries
have recently been revised in order to
exclude the houses opposite the church
on Dunn Close, which were completed
a few years after the designation of the
conservation area on what was
previously open space, and therefore
have no historical value. The
conservation area now comprises the
church and its grounds alone.

The guidelines established in this
document aim to prevent any
deterioration of the church’s visual
character and to consolidate and
enhance its contribution to the
townscape. They will also provide a
framework for the justification of
planning decisions in the conservation
area.

Sections 2 and 3 describe the
composition and character of the area,
and sections 4 and 5 address current
issues relating to conservation and
design in St. Andrew’s Church, setting
out suggested guidelines for residents,
prospective purchasers and
developers.

Front gatepost, with the name
of the housing development




2. HISTORY

St. Andrew’s Church was completed in
1905. It was built to serve Eastney
Barracks, a huge complex built in
stages between 1863 and 1898 to
accommodate the Portsmouth
company of the Royal Marines. Over
its 127-year history, the Barracks grew
into a substantial community with, as
well as a church, its own school,
theatre, gymnasium, and swimming
baths. By 1973 operations at the
Barracks had been wound down,
leaving a greatly reduced number of
Marines in a giant estate, which was
designated as Conservation Area No
17 that year. In 1991 the remaining
Royal Marines left for good, and the
entire estate was sold to residential
developers.

St. Andrew’s replaced the Barracks’
first church, the temporary Crinoline
Church, which outgrew its premises as
the Barracks’ population increased. St.
Andrew’s closed in 1973, along with
much else in the Barracks, and was
designated a conservation area in
1992. In 1998, the church was divided
vertically to create seven homes,
constituting the final step in the
incremental residential conversion of
Eastney Barracks.

The building as it stands today is
situated in pleasant open space with a
number of mature trees. The houses
facing the church on Dunn Close were
completed in 1994 and are therefore
not included in the conservation area.
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3. CHARACTER AND APPEARANCE

The character of this unusually small
conservation area derives from the
manner in which the church has been
converted to residential
accommodation, and the clusters of
mature trees to the north of the
building, adjacent to Henderson Road.
Of the 25 trees in the Conservation
Area, 23 are included within a Tree
Preservation Order (excluding the 6
trees with TPOs behind the houses on
Dunn Close). The combined effect is to
provide an attractive and unusual oasis
amidst more unremarkable semi-
suburban development.

A Victorian church in the Early English
style, St. Andrew’s was one of a series
of churches designed for the Admiralty,
sometimes referred to as ‘Admiralty
Pattern Churches’. The building was
made with red brick, and finished with
Portland and Bath stone dressings.
The church boasts an oak roof above
the altar and a pine roof over the rest

Oak trees adjacent to Henderson Road make for a shaded setting for the church

of the building. It originally contained
eight bay arcades with stone piers and
capitals, and moulded brick arches,
with terracotta panelling round the
sanctuary. The stained glass in the
east window and the three lancets are
by Kempe. Further embellishments
after completion consisted mainly of
memorials.

Northern elevation: front doors to the dwellings




4. PROBLEMS

There are three main problems
facing the conservation area.
The first comprises the
conservation area’s immediate
environment, particularly Dunn
Close, where the church’s
entrance is located. This road is
characterised by unremarkable
low-density residential
development that, in hindsight,
doesn't relate to the church and
its grounds as well as it perhaps
should.

The other problems relate to the
maintenance and upkeep of the
church and its grounds. The
projecting ante-chamber at the
front of the church shows signs
of blemishing caused my the
rusting of metal window guards,
while the soft landscaping to the
front is overgrown and weed-
ridden.

Damage caused by rust on the external wall at the front
of the church

Mid-1990s residential development on Dunn Close,
opposite the church



5. GUIDELINES

The south-facing elevation of the church, with rear gardens visible

1) THE BUILDING

The former church is not covered by
statutory listing, but it is on the local list
and would need to be maintained in its
current condition in order to uphold the
character of the conservation area of
which it is the focus.

Guidelines

a. The city council will encourage
the retention and conservation
of existing features that form
part of the historic building and
will discourage the introduction
of new extensions, alterations
or features which diminish the
character of the building.

b. The city council will encourage
the introduction of sympathetic
features to the building and will

discourage any feature which
detracts from the character of
the area.

2) BOUNDARY WALL AND
RAILINGS

The boundary wall and railings
surrounding the site were installed
when the church was converted to
housing. While they are of no historic
value and are therefore not protected, it
is desirable that the boundary wall and
railings are retained and repaired
appropriately, when the need arises.

Guideline

a. The city council will encourage
the retention of the existing
boundary wall and railings, and
discourage the removal,
demolition or unsympathetic




